			SOURCE	Co
PSE	A		EFF.  16 Section Was constructed by the section of	96 05 15
Home	Contact Us	What's New?		000
			DAEWALOTE	

The Faculty Framework Agreement is a recommendation to the Post Secondary Employers' Association (PSEA) and the Joint Union Caucus (JUC). This recommendation incorporates agreements between the parties in principle and on specific language. Where there were differences between the parties, the language is that of one or both parties or language fashioned by the facilitator Jim Dorsey. The term of this agreement is May 15, 1996 to March 31, 1998.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

- 1.00 Definitions
- 2.00 Context of First Multi-institutional Framework Agreement
- 3.00 Purposes of Multi-institutionalFrameworkAgreement
- 4.00 Comprehensive Public System
- 4.01 Contract training and marketing society
- 4.02 Contracting out
- 5.00 LearnerAccess and Outcome Success
- 5.01 Information technologies, instruction and learning
- 5.02 Access, flexibility, efficiency and productivity
- 6.00 Commitment to Ongoing Employment 6.01 System wide Registry of laid off employees and job postings
- 6.02 Program transfers and mergers
- 6.03 Targeted labour adjustment
- 6.04 Labour Adjustment Fund
- 6.05 Future funding reductions that are likely to cause layoffs
- 7.00 Human Resource Practices and Support Structures
- 7.01 Labour relations database
- 7.02 System benefit administration
- 7.03 Résolvingjurisdictional disputes
- 7.04 Joint Resolution and Dispute Administration Committee
- 8.00 Compensation
- 9.00 Ratification and Effect of Ratification

10.00 Term

Appendix AI: PSEA Layoff Registry Form 001 Appendix A2: PSEA Posting Registry Form 002

Appendix B: Jurisdictional Dispute Resolution Process

Appendix C: System Discussions Protocol Agreement

11839(01)

# rpendix D: Memorandum of Understanding

## 1.00 Definitions

"Agreement" means this Framework Agreement.

"Collective agreement' or "local collective agreement' means a current collective agreement between an Institution and a Local Union or as may be amended by this Agreement or otherwise but does not include this Agreement.

"Employee" means an employee within a bargaining unit represented by a Union participating in the Joint Union Caucus.

"Institution" means a college, university college, institute or agency created under the College and Institute Act, Open Learning Agency Act, or Institute of Technology Act.

"Joint Administration and Dispute Resolution Committee" or "JADRC" means a committee formed between the Parties to this Agreement;

"Joint Labour Management Committee" means a committee formed by Local Parties with equal Local Union and Institution representation.

"Joint Union Caucus" or "JUC" means a committee of the B.C. Government and Service Employees' Union ("BCGEU"), BCIT Staff Society ("BCITSS"), College and Institute Educators' Association ("CIEA") and the Emily Carr Institute of Art and Design Faculty Association ("ECIADFA") formed for the purpose of negotiating this Agreement.

"Local Union" means the trade union certified to represent employees of an institution and includes locals affiliated with CIEA, the BCGEU, and the BCITSS and the ECIADFA.

"Local Parties" means the Institution and Local Union where both have ratified this Agreement.

"Ministry" means the Ministry of Education, Skills and Training.

"Parties" means the Post-Secondary Employees' Association and the Joint Union Caucus.

"Post-SecondaryEmployers' Association" or "PSEA" means the employers' association established under Section 6 of the Public Sector Employers Act.

"Ratification" means acceptance by an Institution and a Local Union of all of the terms of this Agreement.

"System" means the aggregate of all of the public Post-Secondary Institutions.

"Union" means a faculty association or trade union certified as a bargaining agent at an Institution, both of which have ratified this Agreement.

### Table of Contents

# 2.00 Context of First Multi-institutional Framework Agreement

inis agreement is entered into pursuant to the Protocol Agreement for System Discussions of November 8, 1995. (Appendix C) The discussions were conducted against the background of funding cutbacks and the ongoing development of a new provincial strategic plan for the college, institute and agency system in British Columbia.

The Strategic Plan goals at the time of this Agreement are:

Relevance and Quality: To provide British Columbians with post-secondary education and training to enhance current and future job opportunities and to improve the quality of life and citizenship experienced in the province;

Access: To improve the availability of educational opportunities for the increasing number of British Columbians seeking post-secondary education and training;

Accountability: To enable the system to measure performance as a basis for continual improvements and reporting on overall effectiveness and efficiency;

Affordability: To allocate resources to the system in a manner which focuses the system on achieving these goals of relevance and quality, access and accountability and achieving these goals at costs that are within the provincial fiscal framework and are affordable to students.

The Advanced Educational Council of British Columbia, an association of B.C. colleges, institutes and the Open Learning Agency, recently adopted a learner focused definition of access: that throughout their lifetimes, British Columbians should have access to educational opportunities that meet their learning needs.

A learner centered approach to access requires the provincial college and institute system to be comprehensive and to arrange itself to enable learners to meet their learning needs. There must be more focus in the future to ensure service, program and change decisions on a system approach to fulfill this philosophy of access.

At the time of concluding this Agreement, the Provincial Government had announced restructuring of available funding into a series of "funding envelopes." Base Operating Grants for 1996/97 are to be equal to 97.5% of the 1995/96 funding. New funding equal to 1.4% is to be available from "Learning Partnership" and "Learning Highway and Technology Innovation" funding envelopes.

The Provincial Government announced a Guarantee for Youth initiative that includes a tuition freeze at 1995/96 levels. It also committed to creating 2,850 new student spaces in the system.

The Provincial Government has committed to working closely with the education community to support the necessary changes to ensure affordable and accessible education across the province. At the same time, institutions are being asked to meet or exceed 101% of their 1995/96 approved program profile FTEs, with an additional 3% to be accomplished through the Learning Partnership Envelope.

Except for the common salary scale transition envelope, the Provincial Government is making no provisions in either the Base Operating Grant or the other funding envelopes for salary increases or internal cost pressures facing institutions. General cost increases to institutions are expected to be absorbed through further and ongoing efficiency improvements.

To assist in the full implementation of a new common salary scale, the Provincial Government has committed to establish a transition funding envelope of \$1 million (0.3%)

system salary costs) for each of the three years 1998/99, 1999/2000 and 2000/01.

### **Table of Contents**

# 3.00 Purposes of Multi-institutional Framework Agreement

The purposes of this Agreement are:

- to further the strategic plan goals;
- to further constructive industrial relations;
- to improve human resource management practices and support structures; and
- to facilitate opportunities to retain experienced educators within the college and institute system and to enable individuals to make choices when confronted with change.

### **Table of Contents**

# 4.00 Comprehensive Public System

# 4.01 Contract Training and Marketing Society

Education is a public - not just a private - good. It is an integral part of our social fabric. Contract training is an extension of the mission of the public post-secondary colleges and institutes education system and should be an enhanced part of the system. The partners in the system need to effectively and collaboratively market institutional expertise and experience.

The parties will form a system contract training and marketing society to facilitate, enhance and support the initiatives of participating member institutions.

# A. Objectives

- To increase the contract training opportunities of the participating institutions in the public post-secondary education system through entrepreneurial and revenue generating training and education courses, programs and projects.
- To develop alliances and partnerships between colleges and institutions, governments, community groups, agencies, employers, unions, international education agencies and others in order to support courses, programs and services.
- To assist member institutions to be responsive to the contract training and learning needs of governments, agencies, employers, unions and community groups.
- To enhance the employment opportunities within the system.
- To facilitate the development of programs and services in response to contract training needs.
- To assist member institutions in the establishment, development and enhancement of contract training capacities.
- of contract training capacities.
  To effectively market contract training and service abilities of the public post-secondary system.
- To assist institutions design contract training activities.
- To provide a mechanism for member institutions to work together as a system, such as a consortium, in order to deliver contract training activities.
- To provide a single contact point or referral agency when desired between

purchasers of contract training activities and member institutions with the capacity to deliver the programs and/or services.

• To enable institutions to produce surplus revenues in support of the institutions.

#### B. Structure

Authority: Societies Act

Membership: One representative from each participating institution, one representative from each participating institution selected by the local union(s) and one representative of the Ministry of Education, Skills and Training. Participating institutions means the institutions who have ratified this Agreement and who have chosen to join the Contract Training and Marketing Society.

Directors: Six (6) directors appointed by the Council of Chief Executive Officers and six (6) directors appointed by the Joint Union Caucus and one member appointed by the Ministry of Education, Skills and Training.

Two thirds of the directors appointed by each must have expertise relating to contract training and be employed at participating institutions.

Membership Activities: Approve annual business plan of the Society.

Director Activities: Supervise and report on the activities of the Society.

# Society Activities:

- To develop appropriate annual financial/business plans.
- To appoint staff as required to fulfill operational requirements.
- To develop mechanisms to identify and monitor contract training, and inventory expertise, resources, curriculums and competencies as a resource for the Society's objectives.
- To facilitate the coordination of contract training/marketing/career development activities.
- To develop strategies for marketing contract training.
- To meet with potential "customers" to promote the system.
- To meet with system trainers/unions/employers in a problem solving capacity including dealing with questions of competitive advantage.
- To review regularly the expertise listed on the Registry and to provide that information to the contract training departments of the participating institutions for the purposes of identifying employment needs.
- To liaise with employers/unions/agencies to identify emerging labour market trends in order to identify new opportunities.
- To develop an inventory of contract training expertise of member institutions.

### C. Funding

The parties recommend that base funding be allocated by the Ministry of Education, Skills, and Training for the purpose of the operation and activities of the Society. (Estimated start up costs \$300,000.)

Incorporation and continuance of the Society is subject to the commitment of funding by the Ministry of Education, Skills and Training.

#### D. Performance of certain work

'nless mutually agreed otherwise by the affected local parties, when the Society **ecures** contract training work for an institution with focal parties to this Agreement, that work will be delivered by bargaining unit members of local unions at the institution.

# 4.02 Contracting out

A. Additional limitation on contracting out

In addition to, and without limiting, any provision in a local collective agreement, an institution covered by this Agreement will not contract out:

- (1) any work presently performed by the employees covered by a collective agreement which would result in the layoff of such employees; or
- (2) the instructional activities that are contained in the programs listed and/or funded in the approved annual institutional program profile and that are currently performed by bargaining unit employees.
- B. Certain inter-institutional arrangements permissible

Despite any limitation in a local collective agreement, an institution covered by this Agreement may enter into arrangements to have instructional activities contained in the programs listed and/or funded in the approved annual institutional program profile performed by another institution covered by this Agreement provided it is performed by instructional bargaining unit employees in the receiving institution(s) who are covered by this Agreement.

Contract training work may also be moved between institutions which are party to this Agreement provided the work is done by instructional bargaining unit employees in the receiving institution(s).

# C. Scope

Article 4.02 applies only to the employees included within the bargaining units covered by this Agreement.

### **Table of Contents**

### 5.00 Learner Access and Outcome Success

Decreasing resources and increasing demand for learner access require that the education community create efficiencies and promote new methods of appropriate and continuous learning in accessible learning environments.

The introduction of operational changes needs to be managed thoughtfully and to allow for creativity and leadership at the local institution and community while respecting the needs of employees and students.

# 5.01 Information technologies, instruction and learning

# A. Objective

To enhance relevance and quality, access, flexibility, and affordability in post-secondary education, information technologies, such as real-time interactive video, e-mail,

ternet-based instruction and other electronically based means for instruction and rearning, can and should be applied to supplement class room based learning.

# B. Uses of Information technologies

Information technologies can and should be used to:

- maintain and enhance the quality of education and educational support;
- increase access to education and learning by providing greater flexibility for students in relation to their location, schedules, employment status, financial resources, and style and pace of learning;

 provide greater flexibility and choice regarding educational delivery and methods of learning;

 deliver education and educational support more cost-effectively, where appropriate, consistent with relevance and quality;

 maximize access to and utilization of the existing educational capacity of institutions; and

 facilitate collaboration among institutions in achieving efficiencies across two or more institutions through activities such as shared courses.

# C. Development and implementation strategies

The development and implementation of specific applications of information technologies to the delivery and support of educational programs should be subject to:

- consultation between the institution, the local union and the faculty in the subject or program in which the specific technological application is planned to occur;
- professional faculty determination of curriculum, subject to the institution's established curriculum-approval processes including the Education Council;
- consideration of the appropriateness of specific technologies and the need for face-to-face interaction or group activity for certain subjects and programs;
- provision of study opportunities, training, practise and orientation to instructors through the use of professional development funds;
- exploring partnerships among institutions to fund exploratory and innovative technologies; and
- pursuing measures to gain acceptance of new technologies by the community.
- D. Agreement to increase some class size and facilitate full enrollment
- 1. Second to fourth year lectures, tutorials or seminars may be increased as follows:
- -Where established enrollments is limited to a maximum of 35 students then: One additional student may be added; Up to 25% of students may be remote. Where established enrollments is limited to greater than 35 students but less than 70 students then: Up to two additional students may be added; Up to 40% of students may be remote. -Where established enrollments is limited to a maximum of 70 students then: Up to three additional students may be added Up to 50% of students may be remote 2. E-mail may be substituted for "office hours" type of instructor contact for remote students at any level.
- 3. Inter-institutional agreements concerning shared courses shall be subject to mutual agreement among the participating institutions and Education Councils.
- 4. Unless otherwise agreed by local parties, first year and entry level classes will

ntinue to be limited to current class size limits as provided in the collective agreements as previously established by the institution. Nothing in this Agreement restricts the use of information technologies in these classes.

E. Technological change notice abridged to minimum in some cases

When the introduction of information technologies in the above noted circumstances does not result in the layoff of faculty or in the reduction in the established appointment levels of faculty, time lines for notice and implementation of technological change in the local collective agreement are amended for the duration of this agreement to provide for notice no greater than the notice required by section 54 of the Labour Relations Code.

If the introduction of the technological change, however defined in the local collective agreement or in its absence as provided by section 54 under the Labour Relations Code, results in a layoff of faculty or a reduction in the established appointment level the provisions of the local collective agreement apply.

# 5.02 Access, flexibility, efficiency and productivity

The parties recognize that, to meet the goals of access, affordability and accountability in the context of shrinking public resources and increasing demand for access, all components of the provincial system must strive to be more accountable and cost effective.

Extensive employee and employer collaboration is required to ensure the quality, creativity and willing acceptance of initiatives intended to improve cost effectiveness.

The Parties understand that, consistent with the current Strategic Plan, the Ministry of Education, Skills and Training proposes to implement a system of funding incentives to meet the appropriate performance ranges of student full time equivalent capacity.

Specific strategies by which individual institutions will meet their access targets will be determined on a local institutional basis.

A. Efficiencies aid in increasing access

In this context, the parties agree as follows:

- 1. Upon ratification, each institution and local union will establish a local Joint Labour Management Committee. There may be one or more such joint committees at each institution as determined appropriate between the institution and the local unions.
- 2. The structure, composition and procedures of a Joint Labour Management Committee will be agreed to by the parties at each institution.
- 3. Within six (6) months of ratification of this Agreement, each Joint Labour Management Committee will undertake to identify the monetary savings which may be realized from efficiencies within its institution and which do not impact on collective agreements or result in the layoff of bargaining unit employees. A report on efficiencies identified, their potential monetary savings and the plans of action with respect to implementation will be filed with the JADRC and Ministry no later than March 31, 1997.
- B. Access and increased student FTEs targets

The parties further agree that:

(1) during the academic year 1996/97 student FTEs may be increased by 1400 and an

ിditional 200 FTEs, for a total of 1600, may be added through the use of information പ്രേറി under Article 5.01 of this Agreement; and

(2) during the academic year 1997/98 student FTEs may be increased by 1800 and an additional 500 FTEs, for a total of 2300, may be added through the use of information technologies under Article 5.01 of this Agreement.

C. Increased class size to achieve access targets and increase productivity

The increase in student FTEs will be allocated to institutions on a prorated basis. Increases in student FTEs will be calculated on the 1995/96 base of 77,000 student FTEs.

To accomplish these student FTE increases, class size limits may be increased for the purpose of meeting the targets.

For the purpose of determining adequate enrollment levels for course offerings, the threshold test will remain at the level established by the institution prior to an increase in student FTEs.

Immediately upon ratification, local parties will develop a plan to implement the allocated increase student FTEs.

If a dispute arises on the local implementation of the increased student FTEs, it will be referred to the JADRC as a Framework Agreement dispute for expeditious resolution.

Except for identification and implementation of efficiencies by the Joint Labour Management Committee, no further productivity gains through changes to local collective agreements will be sought in local collective bargaining during the term of this Agreement.

**Table of Contents** 

# 6.00 Commitment to Ongoing Employment

# 6.01 System wide Registry of laid off employees and job postings

# A. Electronic Registry

The PSEA will establish and maintain a system wide electronic Registry of eligible employees and the necessary supporting data base.

# B. Eligible Employees

Employees covered by this Agreement are eligible for listing on the Registry if they are:

- 1. Employees who have received notice of layoff or have been laid off since April 1, 1995 and are either
  - (a) regular employees with one (1) FTE year of service; or
  - (b) non-regular employees with two (2) or more FTE years of service accrued through working at fifty percent (50%) workload or greater.

2. Employees who meet the service requirements of 1(b) and have not had appointments renewed since April 1, 1995 are eligible for listing on the Registry.

These employees not eligible for listing on the Registry if they have had their employment terminated for just and reasonable cause, they have accepted early retirement or they have voluntarily resigned their employment.

# C. Length of Listing

An employee listed on the Registry may continue to be listed until the earlier of obtaining equivalent employment as a result of being listed on the Registry or the expiration of the term of this Agreement.

### D. Implementation

- 1. An employee applies for listing through his/her Employee Relations Department by completing the agreed form in Appendix A1.
- 2. The institution will immediately forward the completed form to the PSEA who will list eligible employees on the Registry.
- 3. Unions, employers and eligible employees have the right to access the information on the Registry through a designated computer terminal in any institution or through another computer.
- 4. A registrant is responsible to ensure the information on the Registry is current and to immediately notify the employer and the local union if s/he is no longer available for employment through the Registry.

# E. Notice of Posting

- 1. Institutions are encouraged to use the Registry for the posting of all available positions.
- 2. Institutions will post on the Registry all faculty employment opportunities of half-time or more and longer than three months in duration that are available to applicants beyond those employed by the institution by completing the agreed form in Appendix A2.
- Postings will be removed from the Registry one week after the closing by the institution that entered the posting.

## F. Applying for Vacancies

- 1. It is the responsibility of employees listed on the Registry to inquire and apply for available positions.
- Employees applying for a posted position in the manner prescribed by the posting institution must tell the institution at the time of application that s/he is a registrant on the Registry.

## G. Rights for Employees on the Registry

Registrants applying for job postings at institutions who meet the hiring criteria as set by the Selection Committee at the hiring institution will be short-listed and will be interviewed. In the event that more than five (5) qualified registrants apply, the institution shall interview the five (5) most qualified registrants.

,ne application of this language is subject to the provisions of the collective agreement in effect at the receiving institution.

#### H. Available Work

A registrant who accepts an offer of available work shall be entitled to a reasonable amount of orientation and/or training.

Registrants who are eligible for health and welfare benefits at the hiring institution shall have the waiting period(s) waived subject to carrier provisions.

All registrants who accept an offer of available work will have their seniority recognized at the new institution for all purposes other than severance accrual and subsequent layoffs. In the case of the hiring from the Registry of an instructor represented by the BCGEU into another bargaining unit represented by the BCGEU, s/he will have his or her seniority recognized for all purposes other than severance accrual.

### I. Relocation Costs

Any relocation costs for successful registrants who change residence as a result of the hiring that are supported by proper proof of expenditures within ninety (90) days of commencing employment, will be paid by the hiring institution in accordance with its relocation policies and practices, if any, for the position for which the registrant was hired. If funding is available, the cost will be reimbursed to the hiring institution from the Labour Adjustment Fund.

# J. Recall and Repayment

An employee hired from the Registry who is recalled by an institution and returns to work at that institution will repay all relocation costs received from the institution that hired him or her. Any requirement to make repayment of any severance payment received by him or her from the recalling institution is unaffected by this Agreement.

# 6.02 Program transfers and mergers

# A. Notice of program transfer/merger

When one or more institutions covered by this Agreement decides to transfer or merge a program or a partial program and the transfer or merger will result in the transfer or layoff of one or more employees at one or more of the institutions, the institutions will provide written notice to the localunion(s) as soon as possible, but in no event less than sixty (60) days prior to the date of transfer or merger.

# B. Transfer/merger agreements

When notice is served, a committee composed of equal representation from each institution and each local union representing employees affected by the transfer or merger will be formed to negotiate a transfer/merger agreement.

The transfer/merger agreement will address all relevant matters and will be signed by each of the parties.

A copy of the agreement will be provided to each affected employee.

# C. Disputes

levances arising prior to the transfer/merger date remain the responsibility of the ระ**nding** institution.

If a dispute arises as a result of a program transfer/merger and/or its employees being transferred the matter will be referred to the JADRC for resolution.

# 6.03 Targeted labour adjustment

#### A. Values

The employers recognize that human resources are one of the most valuable components of the post-secondary education system.

The parties wish to maintain harmonious industrial relations among employers, employees and their unions.

The parties believe that voluntary, local solutions provide the best approach to accommodating and achieving labour force adjustments.

# B. Employer commitments

It is agreed that the institutions will make every reasonable attempt to minimize the impact of funding shortfalls and reductions on their work force.

Subject to budgetary constraints and the amount of funding available for labour adjustments costs, fairness, flexibility and employee choice will prevail in the implementation of labour force adjustment strategies as approved by the institution.

It is incumbent upon institutions to communicate effectively with their employees and the unions representing those employees as soon as the impact of any funding reduction or shortfall or profile change has been assessed.

If a work force reduction is necessary, the Joint Labour Management Committee will canvass employees in the targeted area or other related areas over a fourteen (14) day period, or such longer time as the joint labour management committee agrees, to find volunteer solutions that provide as many viable options as possible and minimize potential layoffs.

# C. Menu of labour adjustment strategies

To minimize layoffs, the following menu of labour force adjustment strategies will be considered, and whenever reasonably possible, offered by institutions at the appropriate time in the employee reduction process set out in each institution's local collective agreement(s).

- 1. Job sharing.
- Reduced hours of work through partial leaves.
- 3. Transfers to other areas within the bargaining unit subject to available work and meeting qualifications, with minimal training required.
- 4. Paid and unpaid leaves of absence for use to seek alternate employment, pre-retirement adjustment, retraining, etc.
  5. Voluntary severance with up to six months' severance payment.
- 6. Workload averaging.
- 7. Purchasing past pensionable service. If permissible, the employer will match a minimum of three years' contributions to the College Pension Plan where an employee opts for early retirement.
- 8. Combined pension earnings and reduced workload arrangements to equal 100% of

regular salary.

- 9. Early retirement incentives pursuant to local collective agreements.
- Agreed secondment.
- 11. Retraining.
- 12. Trial retirement.
- 13. Continuation of health and welfare benefits.
- 14. Combinations and variations of the above or other alternatives.

# D. Layoffs may occur

Once strategies other than layoff have been explored, the institutions will proceed, if need be, to layoffs. For those affected by layoff, the provisions of the local collective agreement will apply and the system wide layoff Registry will be available.

# E. No stacking of entitlements

While various options may be considered and offered, there will be no stacking of entitlements.

# 6.04 Labour Adjustment Fund

The parties agree to request the Ministry of Education, Skills and Training to establish a Labour Adjustment Fund to be administered by PSEA for the benefit of all employees and institutions covered by this Agreement.

The purpose of the fund is to accommodate the needs of employees and institutions in achieving targeted labour adjustments at an institution through cost sharing.

The Fund is to provide 50% of the cost of labour adjustment strategies up to the amount allocated to the Fund.

The parties recommend that the Ministry consult with them on the eligibility requirements for an institution to gain access to cost sharing from the Fund.

The compensation provided to an employee under this article will not exceed the severance provisions for the displacement of an individual as provided in the local collective agreement.

# 6.05 Future funding reductions that are likely to cause layoff

The parties recommend that at the time of any a future funding reduction in the total amount of the Base Operating Grand and other funding envelopes during the life of this Agreement that will likely result in layoffs at an institution beyond those contemplated by the terms of the Labour Adjustment Fund, the Ministry of Education, Skills and Training establish a special early retirement incentive fund to encourage voluntary early retirement at each institution consistent with its targeted needs.

The parties recommend that the Ministry consult with the parties about the application and administration of the fund.

The institutions and unions will jointly canvas each bargaining unit to identify strategies to minimize potential layoffs before affected employees may choose voluntary early retirement.

The purpose of the fund is to resolve downsizing problems when other solutions are unavailable or unlikely to resolve the problems within a reasonable time. Priority

andidates for early retirement are likely to be employees employed at an institution here there is limited alternate employment and in circumstances where early retirement would assist in other voluntary reduction initiatives. When more than one employee qualifies for the early retirement incentive, candidates would be chosen on the basis of service seniority.

The parties recommend that eligible employees at each institute who opt for voluntary early retirement be able to choose to receive a lump sum payment from the special fund, or the equivalent in paid leave prior to retirement.

Eligible employees will not be permitted to stack the lump sum payment from this special fund onto existing early retirement plans under local collective agreements. They will be eligible for retirement provisions or allowances which would normally be afforded retirees.

### **Table of Contents**

# 7.00 Human Resource Practices and Support Structures

### 7.01 Labour relations database

The parties believe that their ongoing and collective bargaining relationships can be enhanced through useful, timely and accessible data on relevant matters, including those listed below.

The parties agree to provide and support the accumulation and dissemination of available data to the InformationManagement Centre initiative proposed in the Ministry's March 11, 1996 "Strategies for British Columbia's College, Institute and Agency System." The parties may undertake joint projects for the comparative analysis of the data.

The parties recommend that the Ministry of Education, Skills and Training provide one-time funding to assist in the gathering of the data.

#### Health & Welfare:

- types of coverage
- participation rates
- premiums
- cost sharing
- commission costs
- available studies commissioned by Government agencies re: comparative benefit analysis
- carrier contracts

# Collective Bargaining

- salary information by classification
- demographics age, gender, salary, placement, status
- collective agreements within system disks
- pension plan participation rates

### **Contract Administration**

arbitration. Labour Relation Board and other decisions and costs thereof for the

system

lócal letters of understanding

# **7.02** System benefit administration

The Parties agree to work together to achieve competitive benefits that serve the interests of employees and institutions.

The PSEA will consult the JADRC regarding the development and implementation of system-wide efficiencies in the provision and administration of employee benefits.

# 7.03 Resolving jurisdictional disputes

The Jurisdictional Dispute Resolving Process in Appendix B will be used by all institutions and local unions covered by this Agreement for the duration of this Agreement.

# 7.04 Joint Administration and Dispute Resolution Committee

# A. Formation and composition

A Joint Administration and Dispute Resolution Committee (JADRC) will be formed by the parties to this Agreement by July 15, 1996. The Committee will consist of four (4) representatives of the PSEA and four (4) representatives of the JUC.

# B. Operation

The Committee will meet every two (2) months or as often as required to review outstanding matters. A quorum for making any decision must be a minimum of four (4) representatives with equal representation from PSEA and JUC. The Committee will establish its own procedures and protocols; however, decisions will be mutual decisions between the parties.

# C. Purpose

The purpose of the Committee will be to assist the parties to this Agreement and local parties in the administration of collective agreements and resolution of disputes by:

- providing a forum for dialogue between the parties to this Agreement respecting issues impacting labour relations;
- resolving local disputes over the implementation of increases in class size to achieve local access targets and recommending resolutions for any other local dispute referred to it;
- appointing mutually agreed Umpires as needed for the operation of the Jurisdictional Disputes Resolution process at Appendix B to this Agreement; and
- developing strategies to reduce arbitration and related costs.

#### D. Functions

The functions of the Committee will be as follows.

# (1) Framework Agreement Disputes

When the local parties identify an issue of dispute, they will attempt to resolve that issue locally on a without prejudice basis to this Agreement.

The process for dealing with unresolved disputes arising from the interpretation, application, operation or alleged violation of this Agreement will be as follows:

- (a) The dispute will be referred to the JADRC for a binding recommendation for settlement of the dispute within thirty (30) calendar days of referral.
- (b) If the dispute is not resolved by the JADRC making a binding recommendation, the matter will be referred to James Dorsey, or another mutually acceptable arbitrator, for resolution pursuant to the provisions of the Labour Relations Code. The arbitrator's fees and expenses will be borne equally by the parties to this Agreement. Recovery of such costs will be addressed by each party through it's own process.
- (c) If a dispute over local implementation of the increased student FTEs or application of any aspect of this Agreement to parties at the Open Learning Agency is not resolved by the JADRC making a binding recommendation, the matter will be referred to James Dorsey for a final and binding decision. Mr. Dorsey will determine his own procedure and will have the option of seeking a mediated settlement. Mr. Dorsey's fees and expenses will be borne equally by the local parties.
- (2) Interpretive Assistance Local Agreements

Local parties may agree to jointly submit a brief statement of facts regarding the application, interpretation, operation or alleged violation of a local collective agreement.

The JADRC shall, within thirty (30) days of receipt of a statement of facts, submit a recommendation for resolution or refer the matter back to the local parties.

The referral of an issue in dispute to the JADRC does not suspend or delay the local grievance/arbitration or other process unless the local parties agree to such a delay or suspension pending a recommendation from the JADRC.

#### Table of Contents

# 8.00 Compensation

Currently the instructional wage rate across the system varies from a low of \$36,336.00 to a high of \$64,318.00 within pay scales having from seven (7) to seventeen (17) steps. Until information is available from the data base initiative in this Agreement or other sources, accounting practices across the system do not enable the parties to identify and differentiate unit labour compensation.

The parties agree that a desirable framework goal is one common salary scale for all instructional faculty, counsellors, librarians, curriculum designers and any other designation currently compensated at the instructor's rate of pay.

Ultimately the entire compensation under each local collective agreement should incorporate and reflect compensation for comparable workloads and benefits.

Effective March 31, 1996 - An increase of 0.8%

All salaries will be increased by an amount established by applying 0.8% to the aggregate value of current salary and benefits, which benefits are valued at 16.5% of salary, less any previous salary increases for 1995/96.

salary scale shall exceed \$64,318.00 - the current highest. Eligible employees will be paid the difference between \$64,318.00 and the 0.8% increase as a cash payment. This is to prevent an even greater spread between the highest and the lowest.

A pending arbitration to address a January 1, 1995 salary adjustment at BCIT between the local parties remains outstanding. The first 0.8% of any increase under that arbitration is to be treated as the March 31, 1996 increase of 0.8% under this Agreement. If that award results in one or more salary steps in excess of \$64,318.00, they will be red circled.

Effective April 1, 1997 - Achieving a common salary scale

### The Rules

 A fourteen step salary scale will replace all existing salary scales for all instructional faculty, counsellors, librarians, curriculum designers and any other designation currently compensated at the instructors' rate of pay in all collective agreements at all institutions party to this Agreement.

2. No employee's salary will be reduced as a result of implementation of the new

scale.

3. The increment anniversary date on the new common scale for employees at the top step of their current salary scale on the implementation date at their institution will be twelve calendar months from the date of the implementation. All other employees will maintain their existing increment anniversary dates.

4. Requirements and restrictions on placement and progression on the salary scale under local collective agreements are not intended to be altered by the creation and implementation of a new common salary scale, but may have to be modified

by agreement of local parties to account for the new common scale.

5. A system wide increase equal to 1.8% of compensation will become effective in 1997/98. This amount represents a general increase consistent with other public sector settlements plus shared productivity from employee participation in achieving increased efficiencies and collective agreement changes that enable increased student access through increased class size and topping up classes using information technologies. All of these are contained in this Agreement.

#### The Unresolved Problem

Creating a common salary scale for twenty seven collective agreements at twenty one institutions, with their disparate histories, is a formidable task. The parties were unable to generate the data to enable accurate modelling that could be given close technical scrutiny.

This change is one that will set an entirely new course for an indeterminate period of time and an error at the point of launching the new scale could have exaggerated adverse consequences in the near future for either of the parties, those they represent, the public and the future of these discussions.

The establishment of the new scale must be done correctly. Adequate time must be taken to do it correctly.

Knowing what population of employees will be covered by the new scale is an important element in doing it correctly. Unfortunately this makes ratification somewhat of a leap of faith - as is starting off on most major new directions.

Moving to a common fourteen step salary scale in 1997/98 requires that two significant variables and cost drivers be identified. They are the dollar amount of the top step and

🤋 size of the increment steps.

Containing costs at each institution in 1997/98 to 1.8% can be easily achieved by staggering implementation dates at the institutions throughout 1997.

While staggered implementation contains the actual 1997/98 cost, it produces disparate annualized costs among the institutions in the following years.

Freezing or delaying increments, particularly for those at the higher steps, can temporarily lessen the annualized cost while still helping lesser paid employees to progress.

Ensuring that each employee receives a minimum payment at the initial transition to the common scale can assist in easing any adverse consequences, like delayed increments. Depending on the amount, it can also affect the maximum in the scale or the size of the step increments.

Diverting money to adjust the salary scales or rates of other full time or part time employees will impact the two key variables of maximum step amount and increment size in the common scale.

The same consequence can flow from removing or modifying requirements and restrictions on placement and progression through the common salary scale.

How much the annualized cost at each institution and across the system in 1998/99 and 1999/2000 exceeds 1.8% is a function of four key variables - the amount of the maximum step; the size of the increment step; the distribution of the employees across the new scale; and the timing and extent of their progression through the scale.

The parties do not have the institutional specific data that enables them to accurately project the costs of their respective proposals into 1998/99 and 1999/2000. This is necessary to be able to design a common salary scale with confidence that, on full implementation, has an annualized cost in 2000/2001 that does not exceed 101.8% of the 1996/97 cost plus \$3 million. This was the commitment that the parties made to each other in the April 26 memorandum of understanding. They accepted that the scale, once set within these constraints, could be renegotiated in 1998.

#### The Solution

Working with the five Rules stated above and using a maximum step amount no higher than \$64,318.00 and no lower than \$60,500.00, the parties will design a salary scale.

The method for determining its annualized cost in 1999/2000 will be as follows:

- 1. Using the costs for 1996/97 for all the parties who have ratified this Agreement calculate the 1.8%.
- 2. Using current salary scales, employee populations, increment anniversaries (without delays) and, based on past experience, assuming any probable changes through progression, retirement, resignation and so on for all the parties who have ratified this Agreement, determine the cost for 1998/99.
- 3. Using the proposed scale maximum and increment steps, transfer employees to the proposed scale and make the expected progressions through the scale to 1999/2000 based on past experience with retirements, resignations and so on. Then cost for 1999/2000.
- 4. The difference between the base cost (#1) and the increase of the 1999/2000 cost (#3) over the 1998/99 cost (#2) must be no greater than \$3 million.

### "me for final resolution

The earliest that the common salary scale could be implemented at any institution is April 1, 1997.

The parties are to reach agreement on the common salary scale and all related compensation aspects by October 11, 1996. If they are unable to resolve all aspects, then the matter will be referred immediately to James Dorsey for final and binding decision to be rendered no later than December 13, 1996. Mr. Dorsey will determine his own procedure. He will have the option of seeking a mediated settlement and engaging expert technical assistance. His fees and expenses will be borne equally by the parties.

#### **Table of Contents**

## 9.00 Ratification and Effect of Ratification

1. Each party will submit this Agreement for ratification by their principals.

2. Ratification by each institution and local union will be completed by June 14, 1996.

3 Upon ratification by both local parties to a collective bargaining relationship or collective agreement, this Agreement will come into full force and effect for the bargaining unit. Collective bargaining between an institution and local union on all monetary issues and workload changes, to the extent to which they have a monetary impact, ceases upon ratification of this Agreement.

4. Ratification by an institution and local union amends the terms and conditions of their collective agreement to the extent necessary for the full implementation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement except where specific exceptions or

exemptions have been included in this Agreement.

 (a) Notwithstanding ratification and subject to (b) and (c) and 7 below, local parties retain full rights to bargain collectively any provisions not covered by this Agreement.

- (b) During the term of this Agreement all disputes over unresolved terms in collective bargaining must be either left unresolved until the expiration of the term of this Agreement or submitted by either party for final and binding interest arbitration by James Dorsey, who will have the option of seeking a mediated settlement.
- (c) The local parties may agree to the procedures for, or method of, interest arbitration. In the absence of local party agreement, Mr. Dorsey will determine his own procedure. His fees and expenses will be borne equally by the local parties.
- 6. Retroactive operation of any provisions of this Agreement must be as stated within the body of this Agreement.
- This Agreement may only be amended by the written agreement of the PSEA and the JUC.
- 8. Upon ratification by the local parties at the Open Learning Agency they will determine how this Agreement applies to its unique circumstances. If a dispute arises between the local parties, it may be referred by either party to the JADRC as a Framework Agreement dispute.

#### Table of Contents

### 10.00 Term

this agreement will remain in effect until March 31, 1998.

Either party may give notice to the other to commence discussions for a renewal of this Agreement not later than December 31, 1997.

### **Table of Contents**

### APPENDIX A I

### POST SECONDARY EMPLOYERS ASSOCIATION LAYOFF REGISTRY FORM 001

- 0. (for PSEA use only:)
- 1. College or Instituté:
- 2. Registrant:
- 3. Service Date (length of service):
- 4. Program/Area:
- 5. Date of Lay off Notice:
- 6. Date of Availability/Lay off:
- Registrant electronic Resume available at:

College Personnel Contact Person:

College Personnel Contact phone number:

Bargaining Unit Contact Person:

Barğaining Unit Contact phone number:

Information Release Waiver for the purposes of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act

I agree that the above personal information including my resume (if available) can be made available to prospective Institutional employers and union via the internet or other means.

Signature of Registrant Date

### **Table of Contents**

### APPENDIX A2

#### POST SECONDARY EMPLOYERS ASSOCIATION POSTING REGISTRY FORM 002

- 0. (For PSEA use only)
- College and Location
- 2. Job Title
- 3. Areal Program/ Discipline(s)
- 4. Job Description
- 5. Start Date
- 6. Close Date
- 7. Contact Person and Address

### able of Contents

### APPENDIX B

#### JURISDICTIONAL DISPUTE RESOLVING PROCESS

#### A. Preamble

The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a jurisdictional dispute resolution process which is equitable, expeditious and reflects the desire of the Parties to promote effective working relationships.

The parties agree that the following process will be used in the event of a dispute respecting the appropriateness of a bargaining unit placement where the institution introduces a new position or significantly revises an existing position.

### **B.** Process

- 1. When requested, the institution will provide a bargaining unit position or job description to the union(s) certified at the institution. The union may request such things as a draft job posting, job description, course outline, organizational chart, and other relevant information. The institution will make every reasonable effort to respond to the request within seven (7) days of receipt of the request, but not later than thirty-one (31) days of receipt of the request.
- 2. For a new position or when a significant change has occurred, a local party may request a meeting pursuant to 3 below, to resolve any dispute which may arise concerning the appropriateness of bargaining unit placement.
- When requested, the local parties will meet within twenty-one (21) calendar days. Every effort will be made to reach agreement on the appropriate bargaining unit placement.
- 4. When there remains a dispute a local party may refer the matter within thirty (30) calendar days to a Jurisdictional Assignment Umpire it selects from a list of Umpires appointed by the JADRC.
- 5. The referral will include a brief outline of the particulars of the dispute, a summary of the party's position on the matter and copies of documents upon which the party intends to rely. A copy of the referral and documents will be sent to each union certified and the institution.
- 6. The Umpire will convene a hearing within twenty-one (21) days receipt of the initial referral.
- 7. The Umpire will direct an exchange of particulars and documents upon which the parties intend to rely no later than seven (7) days prior to a hearing in to the matter.
- 8. The hearing will be expedited in all respects and conducted on an informal basis.
- 9. The expenses and fees of the Umpire will be borne equally among the parties involved in the dispute.

- 10. In determining the appropriateness of bargaining unit placement, the Umpire shall consider:
  - o job elements;
  - o past practise;
  - impact on industrial relations;
  - o community of interest;
  - o employee preference, fairness and equity;
  - o certification definition(s);
  - o and such other factors as deemed appropriate by the Umpire.
- 11. The Umpire will render a decision within twenty-one (21) days after the conclusion of the hearing.
- 12. The parties will accept the decision as final and binding on each of them.

# **Table of Contents**